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FRB RICHMOND 
Annual Report of Holding Companies-FR Y-6 

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year 

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank 
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844(c)(1)(A)); sections 8(a) 
and 13(a) of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 3106(a) 
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a)(1), 25, and 25A of the Federal 
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); and sec­
tions 113,165,312,618, and 809 of the Dodd-Frank Act (12 U.S.C. 
§§ 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468(b)(1)). Return to the 
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of 
copies specified. 

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by 
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should 
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In the event 
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is 
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must 
sign the report. If the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as 
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General Instructions for the 
authorized individual who must sign the report. 
1, Hugh G. Hitchcock 

Name of the Holding Company Director and Official 

President/CEO/Director 
TiUe of the Holding Company Director and Official 

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including 
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre­
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal 
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. 

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this 
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to provide this 
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies 
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or 
object to public release of information regarding that individual. 
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for 
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's 
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information," 12 C.F.R. Part 261, 
that the Reporter ;msJ. individual consent to public release of all 
deta~ the Ii ort oncerryng that individual. 

~ f'. / ~ 

Date of Signature 

For holding companies m2t registered with the SEC-
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders: 

IBJ is included with the FR Y-6 report 
0 will be sent under separate cover 
0 is not prepared 

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only 

RSSDID 2-~-i<g2-~'-i 
C.I. 

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa­
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter­
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by 
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require­
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga­
nization under Section 211 .23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 
211 .23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail 
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon­
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond 
to, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid 
0MB control number. 

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end): 

December 31, 2017 
Month / Day / Year 

No LEI 
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) (20-Character LEI Code) 

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address 

Davis Trust Financial Corporation 
Legal TiUe of Holding Company 

227 Davis Avenue/P.O. Box 1546 
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box 

Elkins WV 26241 
City 

Same 
State 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Zip Code 

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed: 
Hugh G. Hitchcock President/CEO 
Name 

304-636-0991 Ext 290 
Area Code/ Phone Number/ Extension 

304-636-5528 
Area Code/ FAX Number 

hhitchcock@davistrust.com 
E-mail Address 

TiUe 

www.davistrust.com (sub. Davis Trust Company) 
Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page 

Is confidential treatment requested for any portion of ~ 
this report submission? .................................. .. l1=ves[TI 
In accordance with the General Instructions for this report 
(check only one), 

1. a letter justifying this request is being provided along 
with the report . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . D 

2. a letter justifying this request has been provided separately ... D 
NOTE: lnfom1ation for which confidential treatment is being requested 

must be provided separately and labeled 
as "confidential." 

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.50 hours per response, including time to gather and 
maintain data In the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of 
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 2oth and C Streets, NW, washington, DC 20551, and to the 
Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Wsshington, DC 20503. 0312018 



For Use By Tiered Holding Companies 
Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing address, and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies 
below. 

None for Davis Trust Financial Corporation 
Legal TiUe of Subsidiary Holding Company L!'gal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mail Ing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal TiUe of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Streat I P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (If different from mailing address) 

Legal TiUe of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Tille of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing addre&&) 

Legal TiUe of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

12/2012 



Form FRY-6 
Davis Trust Financial Corporation 
Elkins, West Virginia 
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2017 

Report Item 

1 : The bank holding company prepares an annual report for its securities holders and is not 
registered with the SEC. As specified by the appropriate Reserve Bank, two copies are 
enclosed. 

2a: Organizational Chart 

Davis Trust Financial Corporation 
No LEI 

Elkins, WV 
Incorporated In West Virginia 

I 100% 
Davis Trust Company 

No LEI 
Elkins, WV 

Incorporated in West Virginia 

2b: Item 2b, Domestic Branch Listing, completed and submitted via e-mail as per instructions 
to the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond on March 26, 2018. 



Resulls: A list of t,nnct,"' fO( your depository Institution: DAVIS TRUST COMPANY (ID_RSSO: 357526). 

This depository Institution I, held by DAVIS TRUST FINANOAL CORPORATION 12878294) of ELJ(INS, WV. 
The data are as of 12/31/2017. Data reflects Information that was received and processed through 01/04/2018. 

Rc<oncllatlon ind Verlllqtlon Stan 
1. In the D1tll Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below 

2. If required, enter the date In the Effactlvt! Date column 

&3lo!!I 
OK: If the branch Information Is correct, enter 'OK' In the Dlltll Action column. 

Olange: If the branch Information Is Incorrect or Incomplete, revise the data, enter 10,ange' In the D1tll Action column and the date when this Information first became valld In the Effective Date column. 

Cose: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter 'Close ' In the Dalli Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Data column. 
Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depository Institution, enter 'De lete' In the Dab Action column. 
Add: If a reportable branch Is missing, Insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add' In the Dab Action column and the openln1 or acquisition date In the Effective Date column. 

If printing this 11st, you may need to adjust your page setup in MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or legal sized paper. 

Submlsslan Pnxedure 
"-'hen you are flntshed, send a saved copy to your FRB contact. See the detalled instructions on thJs site for more Information. 
If you are e-malllngthis to your FRB contact, put your Institution name, city and state In the subjMt llne of the e-mail. 

Note: 
To satisfy the FR Y-10 reponln1 raqulrements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a D1t1 Action of O,ange, Close, Delete, or Add. 

The FR Y-10 report may be submitted In a hardcopyformat or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://ylOonllne.federalreserve.gov. 

• FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_ RSSD columns are for reference only. Verlfh:atlon of these values is not required. 

DataA<llaD f-Data IBronch-T· Street Address City State 
OK I lf ull Sorl/lce I~ Otlla,J DAVIS AVE ANO THIROSTREET (ELJ(INS WV 
OK I (f ul! Seno!<e 9SD BEVERLY PIKE ELKINS WV 

FDIC UNINUM" fOfflce Number• fHoad Office IHud Office ID_RSSD0 fC,,mmenb 
Not ll<qulrod I Not ll<qulred IDAVIS TRUST COMPANY I 357526 

Not Required )Not Required fDAVISTRUST COMPANY I 357526 



Form FR Y-6 
Davis Trust Flnanclal Corporation 
Elklns, West Virginia 
Flscal Year Ending December 31, 2017 

Current securities holders with ownership, control or holdlngs of 5% or more 
with power to vote as offlscal yearendlna 12-31-2017 

June B. Myles 
Redding, CT, USA 

(1)(b) 
Country of Citizenship 
or Incorporation 

USA 

Christopher J. Polino USA 
Elkins, WV, USA 

William T. Jordan - Trustee USA 
for Grace L. Jordan Living Trust 
Topeka, KS, USA - Note 1 

William T. Jordan - Trustee USA 
for William T. Jordan Living Trust 
Topeka, KS, USA - Note 1 

(1)(c) 
Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 
Securities 

4, 150 - 7 .40% Common 
Stock 

9,602 -17.11% Common 
Stock 

1,BBO - 3.35% Common 
Stock 

1,944 - 3.47% Common 
Stock 

Securities holders not llsted In (3)(1)(a) through (3)(1)(c) that had ownership, control or 
holdlnas of 5% or more with power to vote during the fiscal year ending 12-31-2017 

None 

(2)(b) 
Country of Citizenship 
or Incorporation 

(2)(c) 
Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 
Securities 

Note 1 - William T. Jordan, in his capacity as trustee of both the William T. Jordan and Grace L. Jordan Living Trusts, has voting rights to 3,824 shares (6.82%) 
of Davis Trust Financial Corporation (DTFC) Common Stock as of 12/31/2017. 



Fonn FRY-i 
Davis Trust Flnanclal Corporation 
Elklns,WV 
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2017 

Report Item 4: Insiders 
(1) (2) (3)(a)(b)('c) and (4)(a)(b)('c) 

('1) ('2) 
Names& Prlnclpal 
Address Occupation If other 
(City, State, than with 
Country) Holding Coml!anl 

Michael R. Price NIA 
Elkins, WV, USA 

Hugh G. Hitchcock NIA 
Elkins, WV, USA 

Lois M. Pritt NIA 
Elkins, WV, USA 

Rachel Hayes NIA 
Elkins, WV, USA 

June B. Myles Timber Company 
Redding, CT, USA Owner 

Patrick A. Carr Retired Businessman 
Elkins, WV, USA 

William G. Hartman Retired Businessman 
Elkins, WV, USA 

James L. Schoonover Retired Davis Trust 
Elkins, WV, USA Executive 

(3)(b) 
(3)(8) Tltle & Position 
Tltle & Position with Subsidiaries 
with Holding (Include names 
Coml!anl of subsidiaries! 

Director & Director & 
President/CEO President/CEO 

(Davis Trust Co.) 
Vice President & Director, Executive VP 
Secretary & Secretary 

(Davis Trust Co.) 
Asst Secretary Chief Operating 

Officer & Asst. Secretary 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Treasurer CFO/Treasurer 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Director Director 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Director Director 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Director Director 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Director Director 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

(4)(c) 
List names of 
other companies 
(Includes 
partnerships) 

(3)(c) If 25% or more of 
Tltle & Position (4)(b) voting securities are 
with Other (4)(8) Percentage of held (List names 
Businesses Percentage of Voting Shares In of companies and 
(Include names Voting Shares In Subsidiaries percentage of 
of other Holding (Include names voting securities 
businesses I Coml!anl of Subsidiaries! heldl 

N/A Note 1 Note2 NIA 

NIA Note 1 Note 2 NIA 

NIA Note 1 Note2 NIA 

NIA Note 1 Note2 N/A 

President- 7.40% Note2 Myles Lumber 
Myles Lumber Company 
Company 100% 
Elkins, WV 

NIA Note 1 Note2 NIA 

NIA Note 1 Note2 NIA 

NIA 1.26% Note2 NIA 



Form FRY-6 
Davis Trust Flnanclal Corporation 
Elklns, WV 
Flscal Year Ending December 31, 2017 

Report Item 4: Insiders - Page 2 
(1) (2) (3)(a)(b)('c) and (4)(a)(b)('c) 

('1) 
Names& 
Address 
(City, State, 
Count!n 

Stephen E. Shepler 
Elkins, WV, USA 

Darron L. Talbott, Jr. 
Elkins, WV, USA 

John T. Wilson 
Elkins, WV, USA 

Christopher J. Polino 
Elkins, WV, USA 

('2) 
Prlnclpal 
Occupation If other 
than with 
Holdlng Company 

Retired Businessman 

Branch Manager 
Regional Petroleum Distributor 

Lumber Company 
Owner 

General Contractor 

Note 1 - Individual's percentage of voting shares is< 1/2 of 1 % 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Holdlng 
Com.P!!!I 

Director 

Director 

Director 

(3)(b) 
Tltle & Position 
with Subsidiaries 
(Include names 
of subsidiaries} 

Director 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Director 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Director 
(Davis Trust Co.) 

Principal Shareholder NA 

Note 2 - Davis Trust Financial Corporation is the sole shareholder of the single bank subsidiary, Davis Trust Company. 

(3)(c) 
Tltle & Position 
with Other 
Businesses 
(Include names 
of other 
businesses) 

NA 

Branch Manager -
Guttman Oil 
Company 

Owner-
Wilson Quality 
Millwork 

President-
Polino Contracting, 
Inc. 

(4)(c) 
List names of 
other companies 
(Includes 
partnerships) 
If 25% or more of 

(4)(b) voting securities are 
(4)(a) Percentage of held (List names 
Percentage of Voting Shares In of companies and 
Voting Shares In Subsidiaries percentage of 
Holdlng (Include names voting securities 
Company of subsidiaries) held! 

1.43% Note 2 NA 

Note1 Note2 NA 

0.68% Note 2 Wilson Quality 
Millwork 
100% 

17.11% Note2 Polino Contracting 
NOTE3 Company 

100% 

Note 3 -Although Christopher J. Polino is no longer a Director of the holding company, information must be provided because he is considered a "principal securities holde(' of the holding company. 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 
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!EDWAR S 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Davis Trust Financial Corporation 
Elkins, West Virginia 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Davis Trust Financial Corporation and 
Subsidiaries (the ' ompany '), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 
31, 2017 and 2016 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in 
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America· this includes the 
design implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to :fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

ur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable as urance about whether the 
cons()lidated financial statements are free of material mis tatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on Lhe auditors judgment including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order td design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circum tances, but not for the purpose of expres ing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statement . 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In ow· opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financia l position of Davis Tnist Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31 2017 and 2016 and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United tates of America. 

Harrisonburg, Virginia 
March 7, 2018 

~ /~~,~.(./! 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 
ASSETS 

Cash and ammmts due from banks $ 7,476,668 $ 18,358,538 
Federal funds sold 832,676 

Total cash and cash equivalents 7,476,668 19,191,214 

Time deposits in other banks 1,450,000 

Investment securities (see note 3) 
Held to maturity securities 19,192,080 14,220,297 
Available for sale securities 9,517,407 9,713,264 
Other equity investments 1,781,451 208 1,151 

Total investment securities 30490,938 26,014,712 

Loans receivable (see note 4) 85,449,866 76,417,014 
Less: allowance for loan losses {677,810) {618 241) 

Net loans receivable 84,772,056 75,798,773 

Premises and equipment, net (see note 5) 5,493,869 5,584,691 
Other real estate owned and repossessed assets, net 4,699,957 4,941,985 
Interest receivable 513,801 420,547 
Cash surrender value of life insurance 6,136,405 6,093,284 
Funded status of pension plan (see note 12) 3,162,643 2,548,856 
Deferred tax assets (see note 8) 1,254,816 2,249,069 
Other assets 344,781 401,515 

21,606,272 22,239,947 

Total Assets $ 145,795,934 $ 143,244,646 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits (see note 6) 

Non-interest bearing $ 50,372,656 $ 45,536,044 
Interest bearing 78428,875 80,735,097 

Total deposits 128,801,531 126,271 141 

Borrowings and other liabilities 2,074,418 1,809 748 

Total Liabilities 130,875,949 128,080,889 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $100 par value, 80,000 shares 

authoriz.ed and issued, including 23,897 shares and 23,882 
shares in treasury at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively 8,000,000 8,000,000 

Surplus 8,000,000 8,000,000 
Retained earnings 9,249,735 8,860,716 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,669,366) (3,040,580) 
Treasury stock at cost (6,660,384) ~6,656,3792 

Total Stockholders' Equity 14,919,985 15,163,757 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 145 795,934 $ 143,244,646 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
are an integral part of these statements. 

2 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 
Interest income: 

Interest and fees on loans $ 4,135,819 $ 3,985,708 
Interest on federal agencies 389,818 382,080 
Interest and dividends on securities 383,460 307,239 
Interest on deposits at other financial institutions 75,694 66,621 
Interest on federal funds sold 8,562 3,028 

Total interest and dividend income 4,993,353 4,744,676 

Interest expense 232,198 270,356 

Net interest income 4,761,155 4,474,320 
Provision for loan losses (see note 4) 60,695 80,701 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 4,700,460 4,393,619 

Other income: 
Trust department 72,994 92,940 
Service charges 815,613 855,625 
Income on insurance contracts 137,435 163,688 
Rental income 124,734 141,742 
Other income 156 153 99,293 

Total other income 1,306,929 1,353,288 

Other expenses: 
Salaries and employee benefits 2,450,504 2,290,797 
Occupancy and equipment expense 476,840 494,565 
Legal and professional fees 167,183 305,019 
Marketing expense 57,158 62,639 
FDIC insurance premiums 44,667 100,135 
Foreclosed property cost 353,782 336,293 
Data processing expense 654,498 621,275 
Directors fees 197,064 215,863 
Office supplies and postage 189,562 201,038 
Other expenses 367,405 371,327 

Total other expenses 4,958 663 4,998,950 

Income before income tax expense 1,048,726 747,957 

Income tax expense (see note 8) 979,944 155,404 

Net income $ 68,782 $ 592,553 

Earnings per share $ 1.23 $ 10.25 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
are an integral part of these statements. 

3 



DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Net income 

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: 

Change in unfunded pension liability, net of tax effect 
of ($8,810) and $108,804 for 2017 and 2016 

Change in unrealized gain/(loss) on available for sale 
securities, net of tax effect of ($32,753) and 
$27,303 for 2017 and 2016 

Total other comprehensive loss 

Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
are an integral part of these statements. 

4 

2017 

$ 68,782 

11,905 

44,261 

$ 56,166 

$ 124,948 

2016 

$ 592,553 

(170,006) 

(42,661) 

$ (212,667) 

$ 379,886 



Vl 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

BALANCE, December 31, 2015 $ 

Net income 

Other comprehensive loss 

Acquisition of7,507 shares Treasury stock 

Dividends on common stock 
($6.00) per share 

BALANCE, December 31, 2016 

Cumulative effect of tax rate change 

Net income 

Other comprehensive loss 

Acquisition of 15 shares Treasury stock 

Dividends on common stock 
($6.50) per share 

BALANCE, December 31, 2017 $ 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
are an integral part of these statements. 

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Accumulated 
Other 

Common Retained Comprehensive 
Stock Surplus Earnings Loss 

8,000,000 $ 8,000,000 $ 8,604,922 $ (2,827,913) $ 

592,553 

(212,667) 

(336,759) 

8,000,000 8,000,000 8,860,716 (3,040,580) 

- 684,952 (684,952) 

68,782 

56,166 

(364,715) 

8,000,000 $ 8,000,000 $ 9,249,735 $ (3,669)66) $ 

Total 
Treasury Stockholders' 

Stock Equity 

(4,652,010) $ 17,124,999 

592,553 

(212,667) 

(2,004,369) (2,004,369) 

(336,759) 

(6,656,379) 15,163,757 

68,782 

56,166 

(4,005) (4,005) 

(364,715) -
(6,660,}~4) $ 14,919,985 



DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Provision for loan losses 
(Gains) losses on other real estate owned 
Valuation writedowns on other real estate owned 
Depreciation 
Loss on disposition of property and equipment 
Amortization and accretion of securities, net 
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable 
(Increase) in cash surrender value life insurance 
(Increase) decrease in deferred tax asset 
(Increase) decrease in other assets 
Increase (decrease) in borrowings and other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of time deposits in other banks 
Proceeds from calls and maturities 

of held to maturity securities 
Purchases of held to maturity securities 
Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities 
Purchases of available for sale securities 
Proceeds from redemption of other securities 
Purchase of other securities 
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 
Net (increase) decrease in loans 
Purchases of premises and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 
Dividends paid 
Acquisition of treasury stock 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Beginning 

Ending 

SUPPLEMENT AL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW 
INFORMATION 
Cash paid during the year for: 

fnterest on deposits and borrowings 

Income Taxes 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-CASH 
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Other real estate acquired in settlement of loans 

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
are an integral part of these statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2017 

68,782 

60,695 
( 151) 

254,477 
192,076 

384 
34,041 

(93,254) 
(43,121) 
429,655 

56,734 
264,671 

1,224,989 

(1,450,000) 

1,183,901 
(6,186,891) 

200,000 

299,700 

16,628 
(9,062,905) 

(101,638) 

(15,101,205) 

2,530,390 
(364,715) 

(4,005) 

2,161,670 

(11,714,546) 

19,191,214 

7,476,668 

233,906 

28,925 

$ 

2016 

592,553 

80,701 
l,985 

220,814 
211,708 

560 
18,223 

(49,189) 
(163,688) 

39,644 
(123,501) 
384 787 

1,214,597 

5,700,000 
( I 0,029 ,099) 

(365,000) 
233,700 
(21,500) 
319,882 

(2,119,611) 
(142,015) 

(6 423,643) 

1,043,622 
(336,759) 

(2 004369) 

(1,297,506) 

(6,506,552) 

25,697,766 

$ 19,191,214 

$ 274,142 

$ 1,786,826 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of operations: 

Davis Tru t Financial Corporation is a bank holding company with its principal activity the ownership 
and management of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Davis Trust Company (' the Bank") and Gassaway 
Properties, LLC ("Gassaway") collectively referred to herein as the Company' . Davis Trust Company 
is a community bank with operations in Elkins West Virginia. The Bank provides retail and commercial 
loans and deposit services to individuals and small businesses in Randolph County West Virginia and 
adjacent counties. As a state bank the Bank is subject to regulation and examination by the West 
Virginia Division of Financial [nstitutions and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The holding 
company is subject to regulation and periodic examination by the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond. 
Gassaway Properties is a limited liability company formed on October 2 2014 for the purpo of holding 
certain foreclosed assets. 

Basis of consolidated financial statement presentation: 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Davis Trust Financial Corporation and its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Davis Trust Company and Gassaway Properties LLC. All significant 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of estimates: 

The preparation of :financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requfres management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the repo1ting period. 
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the 
determination of the allowance for loan losses, fair value estimates, periodic costs and balance sheet 
accruals for the defined benefit pension plan the valuation of other real estate owned and deferred tax 
assets. Although these estimates are based on management's knowledge of current events and actions it 
may undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results. 

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are 
pa,ticularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. In 
connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent 
appraisals for significant collateral. 

The loans of the Bank are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property 
consumer assets and business assets. Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio a substantial 
portion of its debtors' ability to honor their contracts is dependent on local ec nomic conditions. While 
management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying 
amounts of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, 
regulatory agencies, as an integral pait of their examination process, periodically review the estimated 
losses on loans. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additional losses based on their 
judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors, 
it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may change materially in the near term. 
However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible ca1111ot be estimated. 
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Note 1. 

DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

investment securities: 

Debt securities are classified as held to maturity when the Bank has the positive intent and abi li ty to hold 
the securities to maturity. Securities held to maturity are carried at amortized cost. The amortization of 
premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest income using methods approximating tl1e 
interest method over the period to maturity. 

Debt securities not classified as held to maturity are classified as available for sale. Securities available 
for sale a.re carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income. 
Realized gains (losses) on securities available for sale are included in other income (expense) and, when 
applicable are reported as a reclassification adjustment, net of tax, in other comprehensive income. 

Other equity investments include the Company s investment in stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
Pittsburgh (' FHLB"). This investment is recorded at cost, since it may only be repurchased by the issuer 
al par and is held as a condition of membership and as collateral under borrowings from the FHLB. At 
December 3 l, 20 17 and 2016 there were no outstanding borrowings from the FT-1 LB. 

Declines in the fair va lue of individual held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below theiT cost 
that are ther than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. The 
related write-downs are included in earnings as realized losses. Gains and losses on sales of securities are 
determined on the specific identification method. 

Loans receivable: 

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeab le futu re or until 
maturity or payoff are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of an al lowance for loan 
losses. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. 

The accrual of interest is generally discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest has 
become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about further collectability of principal or 
interest, even though the loan may be currently performing. A loan may remain on accrual stalu if it is in 
the process of collection and is either guaranteed or well-secured. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual 
status, unpaid interest credited to income in the current year is reversed. Interest received on nonaccrual 
loans generally is either app lied against principal or reported as interest income on the cash basis, 
according to management's judgment as to the collectabiJity of principal. Interest accrual resumes when 
the loan is no longer past due and the borrower, in management's opinion is able to meet future payments 
as they become due. A loan is considered past due if the required principal and interest payment has not 
been received as of the contractual due date. 
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DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Allowance for loan losses: 

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed to be adequate by management to absorb 
probable losses inherent in the portfolio and is based on the size and current risk characteristics of the 
loan portfolio, an assessment of individual problem loans and actual loss experience, current economic 
events in specific industries and other pertinent factors such as regulatory guidance and genera l economic 
conditions. The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loans 
identified as losses and deemed uncollectible by management are charged to the allowance. Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a quarterly 
basis by management. 

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that 
are classified as impaired for which an allowance is established when the fair value of the loan is lower 
than its carrying value. The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on hi storical loss 
experience adjusted for qualitative factors. Historical losses are categorized into risk-similar loan pools 
and a loss ratio factor is applied to each group's loan balances to determine the allocation. The loss ratio 
factor is based on average loss history for the prior twelve consecutive quarters. 

Qualitative and environmental factors include external risk factors that management believes affect the 
overall lending environment of the Company. Environmental factors that management of the Company 
routinely analyze include levels and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans, levels and trends in 
charge-offs and recoveries, trends in volume and tenns of loans, effects of changes in risk selection and 
underwriting practices, experience, ability, and depth oflending management and staff, national and local 
economic trends and condi.tions such as unemployment rates housing statistics, banking industry 
conditions, and the effect of changes in credit concentrations. Determination of the allowance is 
inherently subjective as it requires significant estimates, including the amounts and timing of expected 
future cash flows on impaired Joans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical 
loss experience and consideration of current economic trends, all of which may be susceptible to 
significant change. 

Loan charge-off policies: 

Consumer loans are generally fully or partially charged down to the fair value of collateral securing the 
asset when the loan is 180 days past due for open-end loans or 120 days past due for closed-end loans 
unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. All other loans are generally charged 
down to the net realizable value when the loan is 90 days past due and/or when current information 
confirms all or part of a specific loan to be uncollectible. 

Bank premises, furniture and equipment: 

Land is carried at cost. Other premises and equipment are carried at cost net of accumulated depreciati.on. 
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method for buildings and land improvements 
over a 40 year and 10 year life, respectively. Fw-niture and equipment is depreciated on a declining 
balance method based on estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years depending on the nature of the asset. 
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred whil.e major additions and improvements are 
capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are included in cw-rent operations. 
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DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Other real estate owned: 

Foreclosed assets held for resale acquired in satisfaction of mortgage obligations and in foreclosure 
proceedings are recorded at the fair market value of the property less estimated costs to sell. Properties 
carried in foreclosed assets held for resale are asses ed at least annually for decline in market value and 
future cash flows, and provisions for impairment losses are charged to income as identified. Holding 
costs, including repairs and maintenance expenditures, are charged to operating expense as incurred with 
major improvements that increase the value of the propetiy capitalized. Gains and lo ses on sales are 
recognized in the year the sale transaction is complete. The amounts reflected in the Consolidated 
Statements of Financial Position are net of general valuation allowances. 

Income taxes: 

The Company accounts for income taxes using the deferred method under which the tax effects of the 
transactions reported in the consolidated financial tatements consist of taxes currently due plus deferred 
taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of the allowance for loan losses, the timing of 
recognition of deferred compensation and pension costs, valuation adjustments on foreclosed property 
and accumulated depreciation. Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return 
consequences of those differences wh_ich will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and 
liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at income tax rates 
applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets or li abi li ties are expected to be realized or settled. 
As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the 
provision for income taxes. he Company files consolidate.d income tax returns with its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries . Any interest or penalties assessed by income taxing authorities would be reflected as interest 
expense and other operating expenses, respectively, in the consolidated statement of income. The federa l 
income tax returns of the Company for 2014, 2015 and 2016 are subject to examination by the Internal 
Revenue Service, generally for three years after they are filed. 

Assets held in trust: 

Assets held in a fiduciary or agency capacity for customers are not included in the consolidated 
statements of financial position since such items are not assets of the Company. Trust income is 
principally reported on a cash basis. Reporting such income on an accrual basis would not materially 
affe.ct the Company's consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

Reclassifications: 

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period balances to conform with the current year's 
presentation format. 

Subsequent events: 

Tn preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and transactions 
for potential recognition or disclosure through March 7, 2018 the date the consol idated financial 
state1nents were available to be issued. 
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DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 2. Cash Concentrations and Restrictions on Cash 

Note 3. 

At December 3 l 2017, and during the year the Company had interest bearing and non-interest deposits 
due from other banks and ederal Flmds sold to other banks in excess of the limits of depository 
insurance. At December 31 , 2017 the Company had time deposits in other banks of $1,450,000. The 
Company does not expect any losses from those depository relationships. The Bank is required to 
maintain average reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 3 1, 2017 and 2016, the 
reserve requirement approximated $1,302,000 and $1,203,000 respectively and was mel th rough vault 
cash. 

Investment Securities 

The carrying amounts of investment securities as shown in the consolidated statements of financial 
position and their approximate fair values as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

Gross Gross Estimated 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 

Cost Gains Losses Value 
December 31 1 2017: 
Held-to-maturity: 
U.S. government agencies $ 8,098,301 $ 48,611 $ (381,789) $ 7,765,123 
Municipals 8,105,396 32,184 (67 664) 8,069,916 
Mortgage Backed 2,988,383 {62,766} 2,925,617 

19,192,080 80,795 (512,219) 18,760,656 
Available-for-sale: 
U.S. government agencies 8,144,674 176,150 (1-8,433) 8,302,391 

Municipals 1,065,000 35,021 1,100,021 

Equities 114,994 114,995 

9,209,675 326,165 (18,433) 9,517,407 

Total $ 28,401,755 $ 406,960 $ (530,652) $ 28,278,063 

Gross Gross Estimated 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 

Cost Gains Losses Value 
December 311 2016: 
Held-to-maturity: 
U.S. government agencies $ 8,097,529 $ 78,014 $ (556,600) $ 7,618,943 
Municipals 6,122,768 16,508 (218,715) 5,920,561 

14,220,297 94,522 (775,315) 13,539,504 
Available-for-sale: 
U.S. government agencies 8,147,508 175,667 (5,861) 8,317,314 
Municipals 1,265,000 28,974 (3,638) 1,290,336 
Equities I 105,613 105,614 

9,412,509 310,254 (9,499) 9,713,264 

Total $ 23,632,806 $ 404,776 $ (784 814) $ 23 252 768 

Certain investment securities with a carrying value of $1,000,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2017 were 
pledged to secure lines of credit with the Federal Reserve Bank. 
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Note 3. 

DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Investment Securities (Continued) 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities as of December 31 , 201 7, by contractual 
maturity, are as follows: 

Amounts maturing in: 
One year or less $ 
After one year through five years 
After five years through ten years 
After ten years 
Equities 

Securities 
Held-to-Maturity 

Amortized 
Cost 

1,348,301 
7,255,837 

10,587,942 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

1,396,633 
6,916,146 

10,447,877 

Securities 
Available for Sale 

Amortized 
Cost 

$ 3,114,289 
1,161,582 
4,433,803 

500,000 
1 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

3,102,723 
1,155,214 
4,632,480 

511,996 
114,994 

$ 19, 192,080 $ 18,760,656 $ 9,209,675 $ 9,517,407 

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

The tables below show gross unrealized losses and fa ir value at December 31, 2017 and 2016 aggregated 
by investment category and length of time that indivjdual securities have been in a continuous unrealized 
loss position. 

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total 
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized 

December 31, 201 7 Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss 

U.S. Government agencies 
and corporations $ 4,092,439 $ (18,433) $ 6,718,211 $ (381,789) $ 10,810,650 $ (400,222) 
Municipals 3,754,345 (23,886) 1,704,538 (43,778) 5,458,883 (67,664) 
Mortgage Backed 2,925,617 (62,766} 2,925,617 (62,766) 

$ 10,772,401 $ (105.085) $ 8,422,749 $ (425,567) 19,195, 150 $ (530,652) 

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total 
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized 

December 31. 2016 Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss 

U.S. Government agencies 
and corporations $ 909,385 $ (562,461) $ $ $ 909,385 $ (562,461) 
Municipals 4.36 1.041 (222,353) 4,361 ,04 1 (222,353) 

$ 5,270,426 $ {784.814) $ $ $ 5,270,426 $ (784,814) 

The Company's unrealized losses on investments were caused by interest rate fluctuations. The severity 
and duration of these unrealized losses will change with interest rates and the economy. Because the 
securities are governments and their agencies and the Company has the ability and intent to hold them for 
a period of time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery they are not considered to be other than 
temporarily impaired. The Company had 25 and 22 securities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 that were 
in a loss position, respectively. 

Proceeds received from the sale of available for sale securities were $200,000 in 2017. There were no 
realized gains or losses on sales of investment securities in 2016 or 201 7. 
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Note 4. 

DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses 

The following table summarizes the primary segments of the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2017 and 
2016: 

Commercial 
Commercial real estate 
Residential real estate 
Conswner 

Unearned interest 
Subtotal 

Total Loans 

$ 

December 31, 

2017 

10,915,150 
46,808, 158 
25,246,442 

2,740,554 

85,710,304 
(260,438) 

$ 85,449,866 

December 31, 
2016 

$ 7,707,044 
41,228,916 
23,974,883 

3,798,879 

76,709,722 
(292,708) 

$ 76,417,014 

The segments of the Company's loan portfolio are disaggregated to a level that allows management to 
monitor risk and perfonnance. In reviewing risk, management has determined there to be several different 
risk categories within the loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses consists of amounts applicable to: 
(1) the residential real estate loan portfolio; (2) the consumer loan portfolio; (3) the commercial real estate 
loan portfolio; and (4) the commercial loan portfolio. The residential mortgage loan segment is made up 
of fixed rate and adjustable rate single-family amortizing term loans, which are primarily first liens as 
well as home equity lines of credit. The consumer loan segment consists of loans secured by automobiles, 
consumer goods, savings accounts, together with personal lines of credit, overdraft loans, other types of 
secured consumer loans, and unsecured personal loans. Overdrafts on deposit accounts at December 31, 
2017 and 2016 of $30,650 and $20,877, respectively, are reclassified into total consumer loans for 
purposes of these disclosures. The commercial real estate segment consists of loans made for the 
acquisition of commercial properties both owner-occupied and that held for lease and for financing the 
activities of commercial customers but, in all cases, is secured by commercial real estate. The commercial 
segment consists of loans made for financing the activities of commercial customers but secured by assets 
other than real estate. 

Management establishes the allowance for loan losses based upon its evaluation of the pertinent factors 
underlying the types and quality of loans in the portfolio. The loan portfolio consists primarily of loans 
within the Bank's primary market area; therefore, monitoring the status of individual borrowers and 
consequently monitoring the risk in the loan portfolio is based upon real-time knowledge of the individual 
borrowers, local employment information and commercial activities. Loans are reviewed on a regular 
basis with a focus on larger loans along with loans which have experienced past payment or financial 
deficiencies. Certain loans including loans which are experiencing payment or financial difficulties, loans 
in industries for which economic trends are negative and loans which are of heightened concern to 
management based upon their knowledge of local business environment are included on the Company's 
"watch list". Certain loans classified as "watch list", special mention and substandard and loans which are 
90 days or more past due are selected for impairment testing. These loans are analyzed to determine if 
they are "impaired", which means that it is probable that all amounts will not be collected according to 
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in evaluating impairment 
include the expected future cash flow from the borrower, current payment status, collateral value and the 
probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Management determines 
the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into 
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the 
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in 
relation to the principal and interest owed. 
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Note 4. 

DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

Once the determination has been made that a loan is impaired, the determination of whether a specific 
allocation of the allowance is necessary i measured by comparing the recorded investment in the loan to 
the fair value of the loan using one of three methods: (a) the present value of expected future cash flows 
discounted at the loan's effective interest rate; (b) the loan's observable market price; or (c) the fair value 
of the collateral less selling costs. The method is selected on a loan-by-loan basis with management 
primarily utilizing the present value of expected future cash flows, unless the loan is collateral dependent. 
The evaluation of the need and amount of a specific allocation of the allowance and whether a loan can be 
removed from impairment status is made on a qua1terly basis. The Company's policy for recognizing 
interest income on impaired loans does not differ from its overall policy for interest recognition. 

The following table presents impaired loans by class, segregated by those for which a specific allowance 
was required and those for which a specific allowance was not necessary as of 
December 3 I 2017: 

2017 

Impaired 
Loans with 

Impaired Loans with Specific No Specific Interest 
Allowance Allowance Total Impaired Loans Income 

Average Unpaid Recognized 
Recorded Related Recorded Recorded Principal While 

Investment Allowance Investment Investment Balance Impaired 

Commercial $ 737,036 $ 28,107 $ 3,424,501 $ 4,161,538 $ 4,150,118 $ 184,207 

Commercial Real Estate 5,871,l!O 126,966 2,315,219 8,186,328 8,107,818 498,210 

Residential Real Estate 570,514 130,022 67,733 638,248 598,725 25,656 

Consumer 3,995 10 1,680 5,675 5,531 1,005 

Total impaired loans $ 7,182,655 $ 285,105 $ 5,809,133 $ 12,991,789 $ 12,862,192 $ 709,078 
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Note 4. 

DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

The following table presents impaired loans by class, segregated by those for which a specific allowance 
was required and those for which a specific allowance was not necessary as of 
December 31, 2016: 

2016 

Impaired 
Loans with 

Impaired Loans with Specific No Specific Interest 
Allowance Allowance Total Impaired Loans Income 

Average Unpaid Recognized 
Recorded Related Recorded Recorded Principal While 

Investment Allowance Investment Investment Balance Impaired 

Commercial $ 2,154,942 $ 1,932 $ 554,593 $ 2,697,121 $ 2,709,535 $ 144,858 

Commercial Real Estate 5,539,535 148,924 2,387,075 7,962,549 7,879,196 459,284 

Residential Real Estate 458,189 90,913 208,700 665,420 660,963 18,833 

Consumer 8,124 67 8,932 8,124 536 

Total impaired loans $ 8,160,790 $ 241 ,836 $ 3,150,368 $ 11,334,022 $ 11 ,257,818 $ 623,511 

There are certain impaired loans whose payments are being applied to reduce the principal balance of the 
loan because the recovery of principal is not determinable. The unpaid principal balance reflects the 
balance as if the payments were applied in accordance with the terms of the original contractual 
agreement whereas the recorded investment reflects the outstanding principal balance for financial 
reporting purposes. In addition, the recorded investment in a loan may be reduced by partial charge offs 
which would not be reflected in the unpaid principal balance. 

To help ensure that risk ratings are accurate and reflect the present and future capacity of borrowers to 
repay a loan as agreed, the Company's loan rating process includes both internal and external oversight. 
The Company's loan officers are responsible for the timely and accurate risk rating of the loans in their 
portfolios at origination. The Company engages an external consultant to conduct loan reviews on a 
semi-annual basis. Generally, the external consultant reviews all relationships that equal or exceed 
$250,000, and adversely classified commercial credits. Detailed reviews, including plans for resolution, 
are completed on loans classified as Substandard on a quarterly basis. 

15 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 4. Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

The Company's process requires the review and evaluation of an impaired loan to be updated at least 
quarterly. The following table presents the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the pass categories 
of Exceptional, Quality, Acceptable, and Pass/Watch a well as the critid2ed categories of Special 
Mention, Substandard, and Doubtful within the internal. risk rating system as of December 31 2017 and 
2016. 

Commercial Real 
Estate 
Conunercial 

Total 

Commercial Real 

$ 

$ 

Estate $ 
Commercial 

Total $ 

Exceptional 

10,362 $ 
26,741 

Quality 

74,026 
$ 

Acceptable 

28,616,930 $ 
5,748 004 

Credit Quality Indicators 
As of December 31, 2017 

Special 
Pass Watch Mention Substandard 

12,005,912 $ 
932,227 

989,868 $ 
4,124,242 

5,185,086 $ 
9,910 

Doubtful 

$ 

Total 

46,808,158 
10,915,150 

37,103 $ 74,026 $ 34,364,934 $ 12,938,139 $ 5, 11 4 110 $ 5,194,996 $ $ 57,723,308 

Exceptional 

10,769 $ 

30,410 

Quality Accepl3ble 

$ 24,406,921 $ 

3,891,598 

41,179 $ $ 28,298,5 19 $ 
==== 

Credit Quality Indicators 
As of December 31, 2016 

Pass Watch 
Special 

Mention 

15,616,594 $ 1,194,632 $ 

3,785,036 

Substandard 

=== 

Doubtful Total 

$ $ 41,228,916 

7,707,044 

19,401,630 $ 1,194,632 $ $ $ 48,935,960 
==== ==== 

Residential mortgage and consumer loans are primarily evaluated according to whether or not they are 
performing or non-performing according to contract terms. Management considers all residential and 
consumer loans 30 days or more past due to be non-performing. These loans and their status at December 
31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows: 

As of December 31, 2017 
Kesidential 
Real Estate Consumer Total 

Performing $ 22,990,605 $ 2,700,933 $ 25,691,539 
Non-performing 2,255,837 39,621 2,295,458 

Total $ 25,246,442 $ 2,740,554 $ 27,986,996 
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Note 4. 

DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

As ofDecember 31, 2016 
Kesidential 
Real Estate Consumer 

Performing $ 19,496,652 $ 3,276,621 $ 

Non-performing 4,478,231 522,258 

$ 23,974,883 $ 3,798,879 $ 

Total 

22,773,273 
5,000,489 

27,773,762 

Management further monitors the performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio by analyzing the 
age of the portfolio as determined by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. The following 
table presents the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aging categories of performing loans 
and nonaccrual loans as of December 31 , 2017 and 2016: 

Current 

Commercial Real Estate $ 46,268,452 s 
Commercial 10,679,442 

Residential Real Estate 22,990,605 

Consumer 2,700,933 

Total $ 82,639,433 $ 

Current 

Commercial Real Estate $ 41,168,857 $ 

Commercial 7,695,076 

Residential Real Estate 22,645,016 

Consumer 3,654,025 

Total $ 75,162,974 $ 

Past Due Loans 

As of December 31, 2017 

30-S9 Days Past 60-89 Days Past 90 Days Past 

Due Due Due Total Loans 

$ 433,018 106,688 $ 46,808,158 

186,093 49,615 10,915,150 

1,668,232 127,561 460,044 25,246,442 

17,680 12,109 9,832 2,740,554 

1,872,005 $ 622,303 $ 576,564 $ 85,710,304 

Past Due Loans 

As of December 31, 2016 

30-59 Days Past 60-89 Days Past 90 Days Past 
Due Due Due Total Loans 

47,203 $ - $ 12,856 $ 41,228,916 

11,968 7,707,044 

591,839 421,894 316,134 23,974,883 

121 ,154 17,183 6,517 3,798,879 

772,164 $ 439,077 $ 335,507 $ 76,709,722 

17 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Kecoraea 

Investment > 90 

Days and 
Accruing 

Kecorded 

Investment > 90 
Days and 
Accruing 

$ 

$ 

- $ 

$ 

Total Loans on 
Nonaccrual 

599,509 

645,619 

11 ,071 

1,256,199 

Total Loans on 
Nonaccrual 

12,856 

500,798 

6,517 

520,171 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 4. Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

The classes described above provide the starting point for the ALLL analysis. Management tracks the 
historical net charge-off activity by loan class. A historical charge-off factor is calculated and applied to 
each class. Loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment are analyzed with general allowances 
being made as appropriate. For general allowances, historical loss trends are used in the estimation of 
losses in the current portfolio. Other qualitative factors are also considered. 

Management has identified a number of qualitative factors which it uses to supplement the historical 
charge-off factor because these factors are likely to cause estimated credit losses associated with the 
existing loan pools to differ from historical loss experience. The qualitative factors are evaluated quarterly 
and updated using information obtained from internal, regulatory, and governmental sources. The 
Company's qualitative factors consist of: levels and trends in delinquency; levels and trends in 
nonaccrual; trends in volumes and terms; changes in risk selection and underwriting; experience, ability 
and depth of loan staff; national and local trends; external factors; and, changes in credit concentrations. 

Management reviews the loan portfolio on a quarterly basis using a defined, consistently applied process 
in order to make appropriate and timely adjustments to the ALLL. When information confirms all or part 
of specific loans to be uncollectible, these amounts are promptly charged off against the ALLL. The 
allowance for loan losses is based on estimates, and actual losses will vary from current estimates. 
Management believes that the granularity of the homogeneous pools and the related historical loss ratios 
and other qualitative factors, as well as the consistency in the application of assumptions, result in an 
ALLL that is representative of the risk found in the components of the portfolio at any given date. 

The following table summarizes the primary segments of the ALLL, segregated into the amount required 
for loans individually evaluated for impairment and the amount required for loans collectively evaluated 
for impairment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. Activity in the allowance is presented for the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

Commercial Real Residential 
Commercial Estate Real Estate Consumer Total 

ALLL balance at December 31, 2016 $ 31,943 $ 265,213 $ 301 ,449 $ 19,636 $ 618,241 

Charge-offs (3,606) (18,867) (22,473) 

Recoveries 8,544 665 12,137 21,346 
Provision 49,256 (86,342) 87,787 9,995 60,696 

ALLL balance at December 31, 2017 $ 81,199 $ 187,41 5 $ 386,295 $ 22,901 $ 677,810 

Ending ALLL for loans: 

Individually evaluated for impairment $ 28,107 $ 126,966 $ 130,022 $ 10 $ 285 ,105 

Collectively evaluated for impairment 53,092 60,449 256,273 22,891 392,705 

Total ALLL evaluated fo r impairment $ 81,199 $ 187,415 $ 386,295 $ 22,901 $ 677,810 

Loans: 

Individually evaluated for impairment $ 4,161,537 $ 8,186,329 $ 638,247 $ 5,675 $ 12,991,788 

Collectively evaluated for impairment 6,753,613 38,621,829 24,608,195 2,734,879 72,718,516 
$ 10,9 15,150 $ 46,808,158 $ 25,246,442 $ 2,740,554 $ 85,710,304 
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DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

Commercial Real Residential 
Commercial Estate Real Estate Consumer 

ALLL balance at December 31, 2015 $ 109,373 $ 246,359 $ 199,936 $ 29,765 

Charge-offs (63 ,361) (31,994) 

Recoveries 750 32,921 1,840 11,951 
Provision ( as restated) (78,180) (14,067) 163,034 9,914 

ALLL balance at December 31, 2016 $ 31,943 $ 265,213 $ 301,449 $ 19,636 

Ending ALLL for loans: 

Individually evaluated for impairment $ 1,932 $ 148,924 $ 90,913 $ 67 

Collectively evaluated for impairment 30,011 116,289 210,536 19,569 

Total ALLL evaluated for impairment $ 31,943 $ 265,213 $ 301,449 $ 19,636 

Loans: 

Individually evaluated for impairment $ 2,709,535 $ 7,926,610 $ 666,889 $ 8,124 

Collectively evaluated for impaim1ent 4,997,509 33 ,302,306 23,307,994 3,790,755 
$ 7,707,044 $ 41,228,916 $ 23,974,883 $ 3,798,879 

Total 

$ 585,433 

(95,3 55) 

47,462 

80,701 

$ 618,241 

$ 241,836 

376,405 
$ 618,241 

$ 11,311,158 

65,398,564 
$ 76,709,722 

From time to time, the Company's loan portfolio includes certain loans that have been modified in a 
troubled debt restructuring ("TDR"), where economic concessions have been granted to borrowers who 
have experienced or are expected to experience financial difficulties. These concessions typically result 
from the Company's loss mitigation activities and could include reductions in the interest rate, payment 
extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other actions. 

When the Company modifies a loan and subsequently if the loan goes into default, management evaluates 
any possible impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the 
contractual interest rate of the original loan agreement, except when the sole remaining source of 
repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the collateral. In these cases management uses the 
current fair value of the collateral, less selling costs, instead of discounted cash flows. If management 
determines that the value of the modified loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan, impairment 
is recognized by segment or class of loan, as applicable, through a charge-off to the allowance. Segment 
and class status is determined by the loan's classification at origination. 

Loan modifications that are considered TD Rs completed during the year ending December 31, 201 7 were 
as follows : 

Number of Pre-Modification Post-Modification 
December 31, 2017 Contracts Outstanding Balance Outstanding Balance 

Loan Category 
Commercial Real Estate $ $ 
Commercial 3 25,876 25,876 
Residential 
Consumer 

Total 3 $ 25,876 $ 25,876 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 4. Loans Receivable and Related Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 

Loan modifications that are considered TDRs completed during the year ending December 31, 2016 were 
as follows: 

Number of Pre-Modification Post-Modification 
December 31, 2016 Contracts Outstanding Balance Outstanding Balance 

Loan Category 
Commercial Real Estate $ 254,890 $ 254,890 
Commercial 
Residential 2 253,557 253,557 
Consumer 1 4,926 4,926 

Total 4 $ 513,373 $ 513,373 

All of the TD Rs that were completed in 201 7 were modified to extend the maturity dates and all of the 
TD Rs that were completed in 2016 were modified to reduce interest rates. 

As of December 31, 2017, none of the loan modifications classified as TDRs during 2016 or 2017 
subsequently defaulted and there were no commitments to lend additional fund to borrowers owing 
receivables whose terms have been modified in troubled debt restructurings. 

In the determination of the allowance for loan losses, management considers troubled debt restructurings 
and subsequent defaults in these restructurings by adjusting the loan grades of such loans. Defaults 
resulting in charge-offs affect the historical loss experience ratios which are a component of the 
allowance calculation. Additional, specific reserves may be established on restructured l.oans evaluated 
individually. 

As of December 31, 2017 the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans secured by residential real 
estate properties where formal foreclosure procedures are in process was $147,507, which consisted of 
three loans. 

The Company conducts its business through two offices located in Randolph County, West Virginia, and 
surrounding counties. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the majority of the Company's loan portfolio was 
secured by properties located in this region. The Company does not believe it has significant 
concentrations of credit risk to any one group of borrowers given its underwriting and collateral 
requirements although substantially all loans are directly or indirectly dependent on the local economy. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 5. Premises and Equipment 

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

2017 2016 

Land $ 2,228,328 $ 2,228,328 
Land improvements 156,894 156,894 
Buildings 5,591,919 5,542,562 
Equipment 2,454,175 2,422,107 

10,431,316 10,349,891 
Less accumulated depreciation (4,937,447) (4,765,200) 

Bank premises and equipment, net $ 5,493,869 $ 5,584,691 

Depreciation expense related to premises and equipment was $192,076, and $211,708, for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Note 6. Deposits 

Deposit account balances at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows: 

Non-interest bearing checking $ 

Interest bearing checking 
Savings deposits 
Individual retirement accounts 
Certificates of deposits 

Total deposits $ 

2017 

50,372,656 
16,001,364 
34,810,017 

8,242,540 
19,374,954 

128,801,531 

2016 

$ 45,536,044 
18,939,448 
32,088,145 

8,188,915 
21,518,589 

$ 126,271,141 
====== 

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts at 
December 31, 2017 were as follows: 

Maturities 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 and thereafter 

$ 19,063,929 
4,122,704 
1,525,211 
1,695,693 
1,209,957 

$ 27,617,494 

Included in time deposits are certificates of deposits of $250,000 or more totaling $2,140,616, and 
$1,876,273, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 7. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk 

In the normal course of business, the Company has outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities, 
such as commitments to extend credit which are not i11cluded iu the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to 
the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual or notional 
amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making such commitments as 
it does for instruments that are included in the consolidated financial position. 

Financial instruments whose contract amount represents credit risk are as follows: 

Commitments to extend credit 
Standby letters of credit 
Recourse on sold loans 

$ 

2017 

13,283,003 $ 

302,423 
1,056,561 

2016 

10,665,677 
286,500 

1,079,943 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to 
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. The Company evaluates eacb customer's credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The 
amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on 
management's credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may include residential real estate, accounts 
receivable, inventory, property and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties. The 
distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the 
pe1formance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support public 
and private borrowing arrangements. Generally all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one 
year. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loan facilities to customers. The Company holds collateral supporting those commitments if 
deemed necessary. 

The Company originates single-family residential loans that meet the criteria established by the Federal 
Home Loan Bank of Chicago. These loans are sold on the secondary market to the Federal Home Loan 
Bank of Pittsburgh. The FHLB requires a certain amount of credit enhancement, or recourse, on loans 
sold to them. Loans are sold in pools and the amount of recourse against the Company is limited to the 
amount remaining in each pool. All other collection efforts, including the sale of the underlying 
collateral, must be exhausted before funds are taken from the credit enhancement pool. 
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December 31, 2017 

Income Taxes 

The Company records income taxes using an asset and liabil ity approach that requires the recognition of 
deferred income tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. 

The amount reflected as income taxes represents federal and state income taxes on financial statement 
income. Certain items of i~ncome and expense, primarily the provision for loan losses, tim ing of the 
recognition of deferred compensation and pension costs valuation adjustments of foreclosed property and 
depreciation are reported in different accounting periods for income tax purposes. The provision for 
iDcome taxes was comprised of the following: 

Current tax expense 
Deferred tax expense 

Income tax expense 

$ 

$ 

2017 

21,603 $ 

958,341 

2016 

155,404 

979,944 $ 155,404 
====== 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are the result of timing differences in recognition of revenue and 
expense for income tax and financial statement purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities were 
comprised of the following at December 31 : 

Deferred tax assets: 
Deferred compensation plans 
Allowance for loan losses 
Unrecognized pension cost 
Interest on non-accrual loans 
Valuation adju tment of forecl ed property 
Disallowed chari.tab le contributions 
Net operating loss/amt carryforward 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Securities available-for-sale 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net deferred tax asset 

$ 

$ 

2017 

323,003 
92,876 

479,778 

21,059 
289,646 

34,321 
133,340 

1,374,023 

(76,933) 
(42,274) 

(119,207) 

1,254,816 
======= 

2016 

$ 477,188 
121,654 
987,832 

12,067 
354,359 

35,714 
453,046 

2,441,860 

(117,294) 
(75,497) 

(192,791) 

$ 2,249,069 

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards and alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of 
approximately $597,000 and $657,000, respectively. ·The net operating loss carryforwards will begin to 
expire in 2043 if not utilized to offset taxable income prior to that date. 
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Note 8. Income Taxes (Continued) 

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to tax as part of the tax provision. With respect to 
the realization of deferred tax assets, management believes that a valuation allowance is not necessary. 
The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Company is subject to income 
tax examinations by tax authorities for years 2014 through 2017. 

On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed into law new U.S. tax reform legislation (the "Act"). The 
Act makes significant changes to U.S. corporate income tax laws including a decrease in the corporate 
income tax rate to 21 % effective for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017. As a result of the 
change in tax rate, a deferred tax expense of $718,484 was recorded in 2017. 

In January 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards 
Update ("ASU") 2018-210, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220). The 
guidance is intended to help organizations reclassify ce,tajn stranded income tax effects in accumulated 
other comprehensive income results from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the "Act"). The Company 
has reclassified $684,952 from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings as of 
December 31, 2017. 

Note 9. Related Party Transactions 

The Bank has granted loans to its officers and directors of the Bank and to their associated interests. 
Related party loans are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as 
those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties and do not involve more 
than normal risk of collectability. 

In the normal course of business, loans are extended to directors, officers, and their associates. A 
summary of the activity with respect to related party loans for the years ended December 31, 201 7 and 
2016 is as follows: 

Balance, January 1 

Borrowings 
Repayments 

Balance, December 31 

$ 

$ 

2017 2016 

719,699 $ 

264,937 
(75,345) 

605,490 

195,612 
(81,403) 

909,291 $ 719,699 
======== 

The Bank held related party deposits of $2,771,320, and $5,473,936, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 
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Note 10. Limitations on Dividends 

he primary source of funds of the Holding Company is dividends received from the Bank. The West 
Virginia State Code imposes certain restrictions on dividends paid by a state bank. A state bank cannot 
pay dividends in excess of the total net profits, as defined, of the current year and the combined retained 
profits of the previous two years without the consent of state banking authorities. Both of the dividends 
that were paid in 2016 were paid with permission from state authorities. Both of the dividends that were 
paid in 2017 were paid with permission from state authorities. 

Note 11. Supplemental Executive and Director Retirement Plan 

The Company has a non-qualified Supplemental Executive and Director Retirement Plan (SEDRP) with 
certain executive officers and directors which provides an income benefit payable at projected normal 
retirement age or death. Provisions charged to the consolidated statement of income and the cumulative 
liability under the plans is computed using a 4.75% present value discount. The liability accrued under 
these plans at December 31 2017 and 2016 is$ I 550,825 and $1,476,985 respectively, which is included 
in borrowings and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. The 
cost of these plans included in the consolidated statements of income was $106,337 and $57,233, for the 
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The Company also maintains life insurance on the directors and officers participating in the SEDRP. At 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the cash surrender value of these insurance contracts was $6,136 405 and 
$6,093,284 respectively. 

Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Company is a participant in The Allegheny Group Retirement Plan, a noncontribt1tory defined benefit 
pension plan that covers all employees who are 2 t years of age and have completed one year of service. 
Benefits fully vest after five years of credited service. Benefits paid to retirees are based on age at 
retirement, years of service and average compen ation. Employers who sponsor defined benefit plans 
must recognize the funded statt1s of defined benefit pension as an asset or liability in its balance sheet and 
recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive 
income. For pension plans, the benefit obligation is the projected benefit obligation. 

The following tables set forth the benefit ob Ligation the fair value of plan assets, the funded status of the 
pension plan, the amounts recognized in the Company's financial statements and the assumptions used. 
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Accumulated benefit obligation 

Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 

Service cost 

Interest cost 

Actuarial (gain) loss 

Benefit payments 

Assumption changes 

Benefit obligation at end of year 

Change in fair value of plan assets: 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 

Actual return on plan assets 

Contributions 

Benefit payments 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Funded status 

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of: 

Funded status of pension plan 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss: 

Transition obligation, net of tax 

Prior service cost 

Net actuarial loss 

Total amounts included in other comprehensive loss 

2017 

$ 9,722,280 $ 

$ 9,905,650 $ 

118,394 

392,050 

153,584 

(501,627) 
660,791 

$ 10,728,842 $ 

$ 12,454,506 $ 

1,477,448 

461,158 
(501,627) 

$ 13,891,485 $ 

$ 3,162,643 $ 

$ 3,162,643 $ 

2017 

$ - $ 

(5,200,216) 

$ (5,200,216) $ 

2016 

9,036,048 

9,514,242 

145,740 

400,521 

69,390 

(310,568) 
86,325 

9,905,650 

12,322,819 

442,255 

(310,568) 

12,454,506 

2,548,856 

2,548,856 

2016 

(5,285,314) 

(5,285,314) 

The Company expects that approximately $350,041, before tax, of accumulated other comprehensive loss 
will be recognized as a portion of net periodic benefit costs in 2018. The expected pension benefit for 
2018 is $85,697. The Company has no prior service costs or unrecognized transition obligation subject to 
amortization. 
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Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

The following table details the actuarial assumptions used in determining the projected benefit obligations 
and net benefit cost of the pension plan for 2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016 

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations: 

Discount rate 3.55% 4.05% 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.75% 6.75% 
Expected rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 

Assumptions used to determine benefit costs: 

Discount rate 4.05% 4.30% 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.75% 6.75% 
Expected rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Company, with input from the 
plan s actuaries and investment advisors, considered the historical returns and the futw·e long-term 
expectations for returns for each asset class, as well as the target asset allocation of the plan's portfolio. 
This resulted in the selection of Lhe corresponding long-term rate of return assumptions used for the plan's 
assets. 

Components of net periodic benefit are as follows: 

Service cost 

Interest cost 

Expected return on plan assets 

Amortization of unrecognized transition obligation 

Recognized loss 

Net periodic cost/ (benefit) 

$ 

$ 

2017 2016 

118,394 $ 145,740 

392,050 400,521 

(892,024) (871,184) 

314,050 305,945 

(67,530) $ (18,978) 

The primary objectives of the plan's investment policy are to maintain investment portfolios that diversify 
risk through prudent asset allocation parameters, achieve asset returns that meet or exceed the plans' 
actuarial assumptions, achieve asset returns that are competitive with like institutions employing similar 
investment strategies and meet expected future benefits in both the short-term and long-term. The 
investment policy provides for a range of investment allocations to allow for flexibility in responding to 
market conditions. The investment policy is periodjcally reviewed by the plan and a third-party fiduciary 
for inve tment matters. 

27 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

The Company's target and actual asset allocation in the pension plan as of December 31, 201 7 and 2016 
were: 

Target Actual 

2017 2016 2017 2016 

Asset category: 
Domestic equity securities 38% 40% 32% 28% 
Debt securities 20% 15% 23% 28% 
International equity securities 22% 22% 23% 19% 
Cash 5% 3% 9% 16% 
Other 15% 20% 13% 9% 

The assets of the plan are combined with those of the other participants in the plan and managed by one 
plan trustee. The investments of the plan are priced to market by the trustee using fair values for 
securities based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, the 
trustee uses proprietary fair value models and measurements from other pricing services. The fair value 
measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the 
U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment speeds, 
credit information, and as to bonds, the terms and conditions including calls and prepayment options, 
among other things. As the assets of the plan are not reported separately for each participating financial 
institution, the Company does not present information pertaining to the fair value of the assets segregated 
by the levels of the fair value hierarchy allocated to it. 

The following table reflects expected future benefit payments: 

Year ending December 31 

2018 $ 413,438 

2019 422,347 

2020 425,157 

2021 453,919 

2022 529,093 

2023-2027 2,842,445 

Note 13. Regulatory Capital Requirements 

The federal banking agencies have adopted regulations that substantially amend the capital regulations 
applicable to the Bank. These regulations implement the Basel III regulatory capital reforms and changes 
required by the Dodd-Frank Act. 

Effective January 1, 2015 (with some changes transitioned into full effectiveness over two to four years), 
the Bank became subject to new capital requirements adopted by the Federal Reserve Bank. These new 
requirements create a new required ratio for common equity Tier 1 ("CETl ") capital, increase the 
leverage and Tier 1 capital ratios, change the risk weight of certain assets for purposes of the risk-based 
capital ratios, create an additional capital conservation buffer over the required capital ratios and change 
what qualifies as capital for purposes of meeting these various capital requirements. Beginning in 2016, 
failure to maintain the required capital conservation buffer will limit the ability of the Bank to pay 
dividends, repurchase shares or pay discretionary bonuses. The Company is exempt from consolidated 
capital requirements as those requirements do not apply to certain companies with assets under $1 billion. 
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Note 13. Regulatory Capital Requirements (Continued) 

Under the new capital regulations, the minimum capital ratios are: (1) CETl capital ratio of 4.5% of risk­
weighted assets; (2) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6.0% of risk-weighted assets; (3) a total capital ratio of 8.0% 
of risk-weighted assets; and ( 4) a leverage ratio of 4.0%. CETl generally consists of common stock and 
retained earnings, subject to applicable regulatory adjustments and deductions. The FRB's prompt 
corrective action standards also changed effect ive January 1, 2015. Under the new standards, the ratios to 
be considered well capi.talized are: (1) CET l ratio of 6.5%; (2) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.0%· (3) a total 
capital ratio of 10.0%; and ( 4) a leverage ratio of 5.0%. 

There are a number of changes in what constitutes regulatory capital, some of which are subject to 
transition periods. These changes include the phasing-out of certain instruments as qualifying capital. The 
Bank does not use any of these instruments. Under the new requirements for total capital, Tier 2 capital is 
no longer limited to the amount of Tier I capital included in total capital. Mortgage servicing rights, 
certain deferred tax assets and investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries over designated percentages of 
CETl will be deducted from capital. The Bank has elected to permanently opt-out of the inclusion of 
accumulated other comprehensive income in our capital calculations, as permitted by the regulations. This 
opt-out will reduce the impact of market volatility on our regulatory capital levels. 

The new requirements also include changes in the risk-weights of assets to better reflect credit risk and 
other risk exposures. These include a 150% risk weight (increased from 100%) for certain high volatility 
commercial real estate acquisition, development and construction loans and for non-residential mortgage 
loans that are 90 days past due or otherwise in non-accrual status; a 20% (increased from 0%) credit 
conversion factor for the unused portion of a commitment with an original maturity of one year or less 
that is not unconditionally cancellable; a 250% risk weight (increased from 100%) for mortgage servicing 
and deferred tax assets that are not deducted from capital· and increased risk weights (0% to 600%) for 
equity exposures. 

In addition to the minimum CET I, Tier l and total capital ratios the Bank will have to maintain a capital 
conservation buffer consisting of additiona l CETl capital greater than 2.5% of risk-weighted assets above 
the required minimum levels in order to avoid limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share 
repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses based on percentages of eligible retained income that could 
be utilized for such actions. This new capital conservation buffer requirement will be phased in beginning 
in January 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and increasing each year until fully implemented to 
2.50% in January 2019. The capital conservation buffer for 2017 is 1.25% and for 2016 is 0.625%. 
Management believes as of December 31, 2017, the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which 
it is subject. 

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately capitalized, 
undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are 
not used to represent overall financial condition. If adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required 
to accept brokered deposits. Tf undercapitalized capital distributions are limited, as is asset growth and 
expansion, and capital restoration plans are required. At year-end 2017 and 2016, the most recent 
regulatory notifications categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management 
believes have changed the institution's category. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable 
to holding companies. 
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Note 13. Regulatory Capital Requirements (Continued) 

The Bank's actual and required capital amounts (in thousands) and ratios at December 31, 2017 and 2016 
are as follows: 

To Be Well Capitalized 
Under The Prompt 

For Capital Adequacy Corrective Action 
Actual Purposes Provisions 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

As of December 31, 2017: 

Total risk-based capital (to risk-weighted assets) 

Bank $ 18,492 17.38% $ 8,512 8.00% $ 10,640 10.00% 

Tier I Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 

Bank $ 17,762 16.69% $ 6,384 6.00% $ 8,512 8.00% 

Tier I Leverage (to adjusted total assets) 

Bank $ 17,762 12.25% $ 5,799 4.00% $ 7,248 5.00% 

CETl (to risk-weighted assets) 

Bank $ 17,762 16.69% $ 4,788 4.50% $ 6,916 6.50% 

To Be Well Capitalized 
Under The Prompt 

For Capital Adequacy Corrective Action 
Actual Purposes Provisions 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

As of December 31, 2016: 

Total risk-based capital (to risk-weighted assets) 

Bank $ 18,267 18.53% $ 7,886 8.00% $ 9,858 10.00% 

Tier I Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 

Bank $ 17,601 17.86% $ 5,915 6.00% $ 7,886 8.00% 

Tier I Leverage (to adjusted total assets) 

Bank $ 17,601 12.07% $ 5,831 4.00% $ 7,289 5.00% 

CETl Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 

Bank $ 17,601 17.86% $ 4,436 4.50% $ 6,408 6.50% 
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Note 14. Fair Value Measurements 

U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles establish a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that 
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest 
priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows: 

Level l Inputs -

Level 2 Inputs -

Level 3 Inputs -

Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level l that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted 
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for 
identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs 
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as 
interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, and credit risks, or inputs that 
are derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation or 
other means. 

Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that 
reflect an entity's own assumptions about the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities. 

R curring - Investment Securities: 

Fair values of securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are 
not available, the Company obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing service. The fair 
value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, 
the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment 
speeds, credit information, and the bond's terms and conditions, among other things. 

Non-Recurring - Loans: 

The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan 
is considered impaired and an allowance for loan losses is established. Loans for which it is probable that 
payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan 
agreement are considered impaired. Once a loan is identified as individually impaired, management 
measures impairment using one of several methods, including collateral value, recent appraisal value and 
/or tax assessed value, liquidation value and discounted cash flows. Those impaired loans not requiring an 
allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the 
recorded investments in such loans. Fair value is based upon independent market prices or appraised 
values of the collateral which the Company considers as nonrecurring Level 3. Disclosed in the table 
below is the recorded investment in impaired loans that require a specific allowance. 

Non-Recurring -Foreclosed Assets I Repossessions: 

Foreclosed assets and repossessions are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed 
assets and repossessions. Subsequently, foreclosed assets and repossessions are carried at the lower of 
carrying value or fair value. Fair value is based upon independent market prices or appraised values of the 
collateral which the Company considers as nonrecurring Level 3. 
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Note 14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

The following tables summarize the valuation of the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at 
fair value as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the 
fair value hierarchy. The amount reflected as fair value of impaired loans is net of specific reserves. 

Fair Value 

December 31, 2017: 

Assets and liabilities measured 

on a recurring basis: 

Available-for-sale securities $ 9,517,407 

$ 9,517,407 

Assets and liabilities measured 

on a non-recurring basis: 

Impaired loans $ 6,897,550 

Other real estate owned 

and repossessed assets 4,699,957 

$ 11,597,507 

Fair Value 

December 31 1 2016: 

Assets and liabilities measured 

on a recurring basis: 

Available-for-sale securities 9,713,264 

$ 9,713,264 

Assets and liabilities measured 

on a non-recurring basis: 

Impaired loans $ 7,943,264 

Other real estate owned 

and repossessed assets 4,941,985 

$ 12,885,249 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fair Value Measurements at 

Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices In 
Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets (Level 1) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs (Level 2) 

9,517,407 $ 

9,517,407 $ 

$ 

$ 

Fair Value Measurements at 

Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices In 
Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets (Level 1) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs (Level 2) 

9,713,264 $ 

9,713,264 $ 

$ 

$ 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

-------
====== 

6,897,550 

4,699,957 

11,597,507 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

7,943,264 

4,941,985 

12,885,249 



DA VIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 

Note 14. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

For level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, the significant unobservable 
inputs used in the fair value measurements were as follows: 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 

2017 

Other real estate owned $ 4,699,957 

Impaired loans $ 7,182,655 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 

2016 

Other real estate owned $ 4,941,985 

Impaired loans $ 8,160,790 

Note 15. Lines of Credit 

Valuation 
Technique 

Discounted 

appraised value 

Discounted 

appraised value 

Valuation 
Technique 

Discounted 

appraised value 

Discounted 

appraised value 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 

Discounted for selling 

costs and a·ge of 

appraisals 

Discounted for selling 

costs and age of 

appraisals 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 

Discounted for selling 

costs and age of 

appraisals 

Discmmted for selling 

costs and age of 

appraisals 

Range 

0% - 15% 

5% - 15% 

Range 

0% - 15% 

5% - 15% 

The Bank has made arrangements with and has available from the Federal Home Loan Bank, 
approximately $30,075,200 of lines of credit to fund any necessary cash requirements. There were no 
advances outstanding against these lines of credit as of December 31, 2017, although $2,800,000 of the 
available credit secures standby letters of credit. 

Note 16. Restricted Investments 

Restricted investments consist of investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank and West Virginia 
Bankers' Title Insurance Company. Investments are carried at face value and the level of investment is 
dictated by the level of participation with each institution. Amounts are restricted as to transferability. 
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Note 17. Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Changes 

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): 
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, among other things, (i) 
requires equity investments, with certain exceptions, to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value 
recognized in net income, (ii) simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily 
determinable fair values be requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment, (iii) eliminates the 
requirement for public business entities to disclose the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate 
the fair value that is required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the 
balance sheet, (iv) requires public business entities to use the exit price notion when measuring the fair value 
of financial instruments for disclosure purposes, (v) requires an entity to present separately in other 
comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair values of a liability resulting from a change 
in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure _the liability at fair value in 
accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments, (vi) requires separate presentation of 
financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance 
sheet or the accompanying notes to the financial statements and (vii) clarifies that an entity should evaluate 
the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale. ASU 2016-01 will be 
effective January 1, 2019 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) will, among other things, require 
lessees to recognize a lease liability, which is a lessee's obligation to make lease payments arising from a 
lease, measured on a discounted basis; and a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee's 
right to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. ASU 2016-02 does not significantly 
change lease accounting requirements applicable to lessors; however, certain changes were made to align, 
where necessary, lessor accounting with the lessee accounting model and ASC Topic 606, Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers. ASU 2016-02 will be effective on January l, 2020, and will require transition 
using a modified retrospective approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the 
earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements. This ASU is not expected to have a 
significant impact on the financial statements. 

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measurement of Credit Losses of Financial Instruments, requires the measurement of all expected credit 
losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and 
reasonable and supportable forecasts and requires enhanced disclosures related to the significant estimates 
and judgments used in estimating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of an 
organization's portfolio. ASU 2016-13 will be effective on January 1, 2021. The Company is currently 
evaluating the potential impact, if any, of ASU 2016-13 on the consolidated financial statements. 

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) - Classification of 
Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments provides guidance related to certain cash flow issues in order to 
reduce the current and potential future diversity in practice. ASU 2016-15 will be effective January 1, 2019, 
and is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements. 

In March 2017, the F ASB issued ASU 2017-07, Compensation - Retirement Benefits (Topic 715) -
Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Post Retirement Benefit Cost 
which provides guidance for retirement benefits. This guidance requires that an employer disaggregate the 
service cost component form the other components of net benefit cost. The amendments also provide 
explicit guidance on how to present the service cost component and the other components of net benefit cost 
on the income statement and allow only the service cost component of net benefit cost to be eligible for 
capitalization. ASU 2017-07 will be effective January 1, 2019, and is not expected to have a significant 
impact on the financial statements. 
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Note 17. Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Changes (Continued) 

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08, Receivables - Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs 
(Subtopic 310-20) - Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities which provides 
guidance on the amortization period for certain purchased callable debt securities held at a premium. The 
FASB is shortening the amortization period for the premium to the earliest call date. Under current GAAP, 
entities generally amortize the premium as an adjustment of yield over the contractual life of the instrnment. 
The amendments do not require an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount 
continues to be amortized to maturity. ASU 2017-08 is effective January 1, 2020 and the Company is 
currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, it will have on the consolidated financial statements. 

Other accounting standards have been issued by the F ASB that are not currently applicable to the 
Company or are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
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OAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION 
- . m TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS: DAVIS TRUST 

Financial Corporadon 

)ver the last few years the economy in our primary market area has been fairly 

:;tagnant. During the past year we have seen some improvement. The national 

~conomy has rebounded and the state has followed suit especially in the natural 

5as industry. The resurgence has provided more optimism around our State. One 

,ear ago there was concern about closing a significant budget deficit. This year 

:he budget concern has been abated. At the national level, we continue to support 

nitiatives through the Independent Community Bankers Association to reduce 

;ome of the regulatory burden that has been detrimental to community banks as 

vell as other businesses. 

=roman operational standpoint, total income increased by over $200 thousand 

rom $6.1 million in 2016 to $6.3 million in 2017. Total pre-tax expenses were down 

iy $98.5 thousand. Income before income taxes increased by $301 thousand year­

>ver-year from $748 thousand in 2016 to $1.049 million in 2017. For the last few 

·ears our loan portfolio has been flat and in some years actually declined due to 

he sluggish economy. During the past year our overall loan portfolio increased 

,y over $8.9 million - an increase of 11.2%. The vast majority of the portfolio 

1crease was in commercial loans. Net income on a consolidated basis was $68.8 

housand for the year. The primary reason for this significantly lower net income 

gure was du_e to the up-front impact of the Tax Reduction and Jobs Act (TRJA) that 

resident Trump signed into law right before the end of 2017. Long term, the TRJA 

hould be positive in helping stimulate new business and investment. One of its 

1ain highlights is that it will lower the corporate tax rate from 34% to 21%. But 

1 the short term our Bank, along with every other business in the country that 

as deferred tax assets on their books, had to immediately write-down (charge to 

xpense) these assets to reflect the difference between the current 34% deferred 

also related to the TRJA, which we were allowed to take as a one-time credit 

(increase) to retained earnings. This adjustment is in the capital section of our 

balance sheet and not run through the income statement. The enactment of the 

TRJA is complicated, but for a more definitive explanation, I urge you to review 

the narrative on the final page of the 2017 Annual Report packet developed by our 

Executive Vice President, Rachel Hayes. Her explanation highlights in more detail 

"how and why" the TRJA impacted Davis Trust Company. Over the long term it will 

benefit the Bank, but first we had to absorb the short-term income statement 

impact of its enactment. 

We are presently reviewing all areas of operations to assess ways we can operate 

more efficiently. We have continued to red uce full time equivalent employees 

(FTEs) over the past several years primarily through attrition and continue to 

utilize technology to further increase efficiencies. Last year we reported on the 

implementation status of our strategic plan initiatives. We will be updating our 

strategic plan in the second quarter of this year. 

I am honored to have the opportunity to lead Davis Trust Company upon the 

retirement of Mike Price. Mike did a great job of advancing the Bank during his 

tenure as President. We have a good group of dedicated employees and together 

we will continue to maintain our focus to keep Davis Trust Company the strong 

community bank it has always been and to strive to deliver increased value to our 

stockholders. 



Michael R. Price, President/CEO of both Davis Trust Company and 

Davis Trust Financial Corporation has retired after more than forty years of 

service effective December 31, 2017. 

Mike was a 1971 graduate of Elkins High School and attended Davis & Elkins 

College where he attained an Associate Degree in Business Administration and 

a Bachelor of Science Degree in Finance and Accounting. He also completed 

course work at the Graduate School of Banking at Louisiana State University. 

He began his career at Davis Trust Company in 1977 as an Assistant Trust 

Officer. He was promoted to Controller in 1983 and to Controller/Assistant 

Secretary in 1991. Two years later he was promoted to Vice President, 

Secretary/Treasurer and in 1994, he began his tenure as the seventh President 

of Davis Trust Company. 

Mike and his wife Robin are the parents of three children, daughter Kristina 

Ward, husband A.J. and grandson Bryce of Sissonville, WV, daughter Erin of 

Washington, D.C. and son Shawn of Elkins. 

He is a member of the First Church of Christ and a member of the Elkins 

Chamber of Commerce and a past Rotarian. During his time at Davis Trust 

Company he served as a Board Member of the Community Bankers of West 

Virginia and the West Virginia Banker's Pension Fund. He will continue to 

serve as a Director on the Boards of both Davis Trust Company and its holding J 

company, Davis Trust Financial Corporation. 



,: 

:Jwol~m~~ 
LINDA "TONI" CROSTON 

Linda "Toni" Croston, age 63 years, a resident of Mill Creek, passed away 

unexpectedly Tuesday morning, March 28, 2017. She was born March 2, 

1954 at Elkins, a daughter of the late Gerald "Bill" and Maude Chewning 

Wamsley. On September 15, 1972 at Mill Creek, she was married to Stanley 

D. Croston, II who survives. Also surviving are one son, Stanley D. Croston, 

Ill of Mill Creek, a grandson, Matt Croston of Mill Creek, one brother, Roger 

Wamsley of Mill Creek, three sisters, Sherry "Lynn" Spri nkel of Valley Bend, 

Betty Pritt of Mill Creek, Sandra Haden of Beverly and her mother-in-

law, Juanita Croston of Mill Creek. Also preceding her in death were one 

brother, Robert "Bob" Wamsley and fat her- in-law, Stanley Croston, Sr. 

Toni attended the schools of Randolph County and completed the Office 

Management Course at the Randolph County Vocational Technical Center 

in 1990-1991. This led to her internship and employment at the Davis Trust 

Company beginning in August 1991. She worked diligently as a teller and 

was promoted to Assistant Head Teller in 2000. 

Toni loved caring for her immediate and extended family including her 

niece Jaime who was like a daughter to her. She was close to her grandson, 

Matt. She was very proud of him and spoke highly of him often. Toni was 

known for her kindness to her family and friends which endeared her to 

her customers as well. 

She will be greatly missed by her friends and fam ily at home and in the 

bank. She will always hold a special place in our memory and our hearts. 

~· 



DAVIS TRUST COMPANY OFFICERS & EMPLOYEES 
THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUPPORT! 



DAVIS TRUST FINANCIAL CORPORATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CLASS OF 2018 

,, 
~ ~ ) 

June B. Myles 
Timber Company 

C:LASS OF 2020 

James L. Schoonover 
Retired Bank Executive 

Michael R. Price 
President/CEO 

Stephen E. Shepler 
Retired 

Darroll L. Talbott, Jr. 
Oil Distributor 

CLASS OF 2019 

Patrick A. Carr 
Retired 

William G. Hartman 
Retired 

John T. Wilson 
Lumber Company 



HOW AND WHY TAX REFORM 
CHANGED YOUR CAPITAL POSITION DAVIS TRUST 

Financial Corporation 

f ~pital used to be easy to understan~. We hav~ stock ~nd : urplus that we_'ve carried 

;s ince the bank was founded and Retained Earn ings whi ch 1s exactly what 1t sounds 

~i ke - all the earnings we've kept instead of paying out in dividends. 
j 
[Then it got complicated. It started back when some really big companies got into 

~ome very big trouble by misstating their financial position (among other things). It 

got accountants thinking about ways to more accurately report to stockholders how 

much of their capital is at risk. This is the 8ccumulated Qther _Comprehensive lncome 

number you now see as part of your capital. AOCI represents how much capital MIGHT 

be lost IF certain things went wrong. 

Davis Trust has only two items that go into the AOCI account: Unrealized Gains or 

_osses on Available for Sale Securities and the Unrecognized Gain or Loss in our Pen­

;ion Fund. 

Ne purchase some securities with the intention to sell them again if we need liquidity 

H if the market improves so much that we can better our position by selling the old 

;ecurity and buying a new one. We evaluate the market value of those securities every 

nonth and when it changes we have to have someplace to put the increase or de­

rease in value. Until we sell it, it is an Unrealized Gain or Loss and goes into the AOCI 

ccount. We don't put the whole gain or loss in that account because-when we do sell 

/ we will have to pay taxes on the gain (or deduct the los s). So we've been putting 
- ' 

% of the gain or loss in the,.Deferred Tax Asset account and 66% of.the gain o"'rf.!oss 
-..i ... .. ,,. : ..... -....:;~ - " 

the AOCI account. 

and 66% in the AOCI account. On the 2016 annual report those two amounts totaled 

$3,040,580; this year that number is $3,669,366. That's the total amount we MIGHT lose 

IF we cashed ALL those securities immediately. Which we didn't and wouldn't do, so 

we didn't and wouldn't actually lose that much. 

Then Tax Reform happened and the accounting rules for that are difficult to explain 

because they don't make a lot of sense unless you are a tax accounting specialist. 

First, the accounting rules required us (and every other corporation in the US) to 

make these changes on the enactment date in 2017 instead of the effective date 

of 2018. Second, those rules require us to recognize, on our income statement, the 

difference between the old 34% deferred tax rate and the new 21% deferred tax rate. 

This is why we have in 2017 an extra $718,484 tax expense. 

That created a new problem: our unrealized gains and losses are in our AOCI capital 

account at 66% and our deferred tax assets at 21% which doesn't add up to 100%. 

So the Financial Accounting Standards Board (who makes all the accounting rules) 

allowed corporations to fix the problem by making a one-time adjustment to retained 

earnings. But it has to be an adjustment - we are not allowed to put that amount 

through our income statement to offset the related loss. In our case, we have been 

able to add $684,952 back to retained earnings leaving a net loss of only $33,532. 

The end result is that we had a good year of earnings but at the last minute we had 
to recognize ~ tax loss of $718,484. we were able to offset the bulk of th'at with an 
increase,to"l'Retained Earnin~ of $684,952 which doesn't itlow on the incoirie state-

~ - .... - ""' 

ment. This is ffot a Davis Trust Company problem or even a banking i.ndy~tr9 probl~m. 
~ ..... ' """ .>: 

~~ii i s ~n adj,!-] Stment every co ~porat!on had to mahke. Some com~ anie,s.and sopie 

iftd~ teS'J:letre bit harder than others, but we are all following the same set of rules. 
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